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ADDENDUM NO. 1 

  

Date:  February 21, 2025 

Project:  Solar Photovoltaic System Replacement Rebid 

Job No.: 22500-04 

 

To:  All Planholders and Prospective Bidders 

 

The following changes and/or clarifications are hereby made to the Request for Proposals and shall 

become a part of the RFP dated February 5, 2025. 

1. Proposal Deadline – The proposal deadline has been extended to March 7, 2025, 11:00 am. The 

milestones shown in the project schedule will be adjusted accordingly. 

 

2. Contractor License Requirements – The RFP requires a Class A General Engineering California 

contractor’s license. By this addendum, a contractor with a Class B (General Building Contractor) 

with a C-10 (Electrical Contractor) California State License is also allowed to participate in this RFP. 

 

3. Revised Bid Schedule:  

 

a) Use the attached revised Bid Schedule for the proposal. 

b) The Bid Schedule has been revised for the following: 

i. Base Bid – Construction of a new solar panel ground mount racking system. 

ii. Alternate Bid – Repurposing the metal framework and concrete foundation of 

the existing solar panel ground mount racking system. 

c) Proposers are required to provide the price for both the base bid and alternative base bid. 

d) The District will conduct a detailed structural analysis of the solar panel ground mount 

racking system at an appropriate time before the award of a contract. 

e) Detailed instructions on the acceptance or rejection of the bid alternate are shown in the 

revised bid schedule. 

 

Questions Received from Proposers: 

The following questions were submitted before the date of this addendum. LGVSD responses to the 

questions are in bold. 

Q1. Confirm if weed mitigation should be included in the bid. 

Response:  

a) The contractor is required to mow the site prior to the start of construction. 

b) The contractor is required to implement an annual vegetation control plan using 

mechanical control (mowing) as weed control under and around the solar panels for 

a period of five years. 

c) Herbicide applications are not acceptable. 

d) As a reminder, Proposers shall schedule a site visit with the District and submit a 

notarized copy of the Site Visit Affidavit with their proposal. 

 

Q2. Is it possible to receive a copy of the NEM2 summary to ensure we stay below the CEC and 

DC KW size applied for. 
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Response: See attached NEM application and Single Line Diagram. 

 

Q3. Confirm there are no biohazard concerns such as naturally occurring asbestos. 

Response: For bidding purposes, assume that the site is free of naturally occurring asbestos. 

The District will conduct a soil analysis at an appropriate time after the award of a contract 

and will address the issue accordingly through a change order if mitigation is necessary. 

 

Q4. NOTICE INVITING PROPOSALS, no. 6, requires Class A contractor’s license. Will a B and C-

10 be more appropriate for the work? 

Response: See Item 2 above. 

 

Q5. Part 1 Objective 1.1 D 

a. How does engineering liability get split off in this situation? 

Response: For the Base Bid requiring the construction of a new solar panel ground 

mount racking system, the contractor shall be responsible for the design of the 

system by a California Registered Professional Civil Engineer. For the alternate 

base bid, the District assumes full responsibility of repurposing the existing solar 

panel ground mount racking system after the submittal of pertinent design 

parameters (weight, dimensions, etc.) by the contractor.  

b. Does the district anticipate reuse of the horizontal pipes of the frame? 

Response: The District is assuming that the weight of the new solar panels currently 

available (2.2 pounds per square foot) are lighter than the existing panels (2.6 

pounds per square foot) to be replaced. The District is also assuming that the new 

subarray will not exceed the overall physical footprint of the existing subarray. As 

such, reusing structural members such as the vertical columns, diagonal braces, and 

horizontal beams are acceptable for cost estimating purposes for the alternate bid 

item.  

c. May the EPC utilize the aluminum top rails for reconstructing the new arrays? 

Response: The District is assuming that the dimensions of the new individual solar 

panels currently available are larger in size than the existing panels to be replaced. 

It is the responsibility of the proposer to determine if the new solar panels would 

require modifications of the aluminum top rails based on the dimensions and noting 

the weight difference described in Item b above. 

 

Q6. Part 3 Scope of Work 3.1 General E - Outside of San Rafael and the County of Marin fire access 

to the disconnect, what are the road requirements within the fence line, if any? 

Response:  

a. Proposers shall include in the base and alternate bid prices an allowance for:  

i. Construction of a fire access road consisting of 4-in thick gravel road base 

from the pond levee to the existing equipment building including clearing 

and grubbing, re-compaction, and re-grading as necessary. Assume the total 

length of approximately 700 ft by 20 ft wide. 

ii. Construction of a fire truck hammerhead turnaround consisting of 4-in 

thick gravel road base with appropriate radiuses per latest edition of the 

California Fire Code near the location of the existing equipment building 

including clearing and grubbing, re-compaction, and re-grading as 

necessary. 

iii. Tree trimming along the existing perimeter maintenance road.  
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iv. Re-grading the overall site for proper drainage and installation of drainage 

culvert as necessary into the existing low point on the southeast corner of the 

site. 

b. See Item Q1 for the Site Visit Affidavit requirements. 

 

Q7. Part 3 Scope of Work 3.1 A and Part 4 Specifications 4.5.C 2. - Who is responsible for trucking 

solar panels to the recycler? 

Response: The District will hire a third-party contractor for the trucking of the solar panels 

to an offsite recycling facility. However, the contractor shall palletize the solar panels and 

deliver to a maintenance building located approximately 1,000 feet from the project site. 

 

Q8. Part 4 Specifications 4.1.B.2. – How will the vendor design portions of the mounting structures 

split off in terms of structural integrity analysis? Are there any structural calculations for the 

existing footing and racking system? 

Response: See responses to Q5 above regarding contractor and District responsibilities for 

the base bid and alternate bid, respectively. The District does not have structural 

calculations for the existing racking system currently available on file. 

 

Q9. Part 4 Specifications 4.4 Material Specifications 

a. A.4: Does the structural design begin at the top of vertical pipes? 

Response: See response to Q5 above. 

b. A.18 and F.1: Will the district allow for schedule 80 PVC for DC string masts at the 

array? As a value engineered approach, schedule 80 PVC above ground is allowed by the 

NEC, and will be protected from above. 

Response: Yes, subject to review and approval of materials submittals after the 

award of contract. 

c. G.1: will you accept aluminum conductors for large 1500-volt DC feeder circuits, with 

crimp style terminations as a viable substitute for copper? Aluminum terminated with 

double crimp style connectors eliminates the risk of loose connections. The cost of these 

long copper runs is significant. 

Response: Yes, subject to review and approval of materials submittals after the 

award of contract. 

 

Q10.  Will the existing permanent fence around the array be acceptable as it is? 

Response: Yes. 

 

Q11.  Are the 3 rows of BP panels at the southernmost section of the site included in the rebid? 

Response: Yes. In addition, the contractor shall palletize the solar panels and deliver to a 

maintenance building located approximately 1,000 feet from the project site. 

 

Q12.  Will special inspections, 3rd Party Inspections and any potential laboratory costs be borne by the 

district? 

Response: The District is responsible for third-party inspections and potential lab analysis 

costs. 

 

Q13.  Part 2.1 d: This section directs the Awardee to assume control of the Interconnection 

Application. Is the IA information available to review? 

Response: See attached. 
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Q14.  Bid Schedule, 5 Year Maintenance Bond: Is the intent of the Bid Schedule and 5 Year 

Maintenance Bond for the Awardee to provide full Operation, Monitoring and Maintenance of the 

PV Plant? We couldn’t locate provisions of such O&M requirements. 

Response: Yes. The revised Bid Schedule provides bid items for 5-Year Operation and 

Maintenance and 5-Year Monitoring with Solar Panel Anti-Theft System. 

 

This addendum consists of thirty-three (33) pages including this page and attachments. Acknowledge 

receipt of this addendum by signing in the space provided below. Submit an original copy of this 

addendum cover page along with the proposal. 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District:  Proposer: ___________________________________ 

 

 

 

   ____________________________________________ 

 

Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer  (Authorized Signature)   (Date)  
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___________________ 
Name of Bidder 

 

BID SCHEDULE (Revised per Addendum 1 dated 2/21/2025) 
 

1. Mobilization, Demobilization, and General Conditions: Lump sum price for preparatory work and 

operations and establishment of other facilities necessary to work on the Project, including but 

not limited to labor compliance, prevailing wage compliance, all General Conditions 

requirements, demobilization, cleanup, and surface restoration to the satisfaction of the District 

at the completion of the Project. 

Lump Sum Price: $ _____________________________________ (In figures) 
 

2. For the design and construction of SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM REPLACEMENT 

REBID consisting of 1 MW solar PV system in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 

Item 
No. Description Make and Model QTY Unit Price Extended Price 

a Solar PV Panels     

b Inverters     

c Balance of Materials     

d New racking system 
consisting of metal 
framework and solar panel 
rail mounting system.  

   

e Foundation (specify type, 
i.e. concrete ballast, pile, 
etc.)  

   

f Demolition     

g Miscellaneous Labor     

h 5-Year Operation and 
Maintenance 

    

i 5-Year Monitoring with 
Solar Panel Anti-Theft 
System 

LiteWIRE or equal    

j 5-Year Vegetation Control 
by Mowing 
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___________________ 
Name of Bidder 

 

k Other:     

l Other:     

m Tax     

Extended Total (Sum of Extended Prices, Items 2a through 2m): $ __________________________________ 

  

TOTAL BASE BID (Sum of Items 1 and 2): 
 
(in figures): $ ______________________________ 

 

(in words): ____________________________________________________________________________ 
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___________________ 
Name of Bidder 

 

BID ALTERNATES: The undersigned Bidder offers to make, at the following Bid Alternate prices, the 

change in the Work covered by the Total Base Bid that is specified in the Bid Alternate priced below. It 

is understood that: 

 

1. A price must be filled in for each Bid Alternate item. 

2. The acceptance or rejection of the Bid Alternate is at the option of the District. 

3. Acceptance or rejection of the Bid Alternate will not necessarily be made on the basis of 

price alone. 

4. The acceptance or rejection of the Bid Alternate will not affect the Total Base Bid or other 

conditions of the Base Bid items listed above except as specifically noted in the Alternate 

Bid Schedule. 

5. The original Total Base Bid, without deduction or addition shown herein, shall be the basis 

of award. 

6. The costs shown herein for Bid Alternate Items is the net adjustment that is to be applied to 

the Total Base Bid when calculating the Contract Price if the Bid Alternate is accepted by 

the District. 

7. The final Contract Price shall be the net amount determined by applying the Total Base Bid 

and any adjustment made by the District regarding the approved and awarded Bid Alternate 

items. 

8. The listed costs shall include changes to mobilization, taxes, permits, overhead and profit, 

as it relates to each individual alternate item. 

 
Alternate Bid Item:  
The deductive cost for repurposing the steel framework (horizontal beams, vertical columns, and 
diagonal braces) and concrete grade beam foundation of the existing solar panel ground mount racking 
system, and:  

a. Utilizing solar panels that are lighter in weight than the existing solar panels that are 2.6 

pounds per square foot. 

b. Utilizing solar panels that are larger in size, however, when combined as an array, will not 

exceed the overall physical footprint of the existing solar panel array. 

c. The contractor shall have the option to reuse the aluminum top rails to secure the solar 

panels into the steel framework after evaluating their structural integrity and dimensional 

compatibility. 

 

Total Deductive Cost:  $ _______________________________ (In figures) 
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___________________ 
Name of Bidder 

 

 

 
PROPOSAL SHEET 

OMISSIONS AND EXCEPTIONS 

List all items that have been omitted from the proposal and any exceptions to the Contract 
Documents.   

 

Item 
No. 

Description Comments 

1  
  

2  
  

3  
  

4  
  

5  
  

6  
  

7  
  

8  
  

9  
  

10  
  

11  
  

12  
  

13  
  

14  
  

15  
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___________________ 
Name of Bidder 

 

 

INSTALLATION SCHEDULE 

 

Item  Starting Week # Ending Week # 

1  Contract Week 0 Week 0 

2  Design   

3  Permitting   

4 Demolition   

5  Racking Modifications   

6  Materials Delivery   

7  Materials Installation   

8  Commissioning   

9 Permission to Operate   

10 Staff Training   

    
 

Total Number of Weeks* 
  

 
*Notes: 
 
1. The District intends to meet the deadline to install and connect the solar PV system to 

the grid no later than April 14, 2026 in order to retain CPUC NEM 2.0 status. 
 

2. Contractor shall obtain the PG&E Permit to Operate (PTO) 60 days prior to the CPUC 
NEM 2.0 deadline. 
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